
People Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Monday, 9th September, 2019 at 6.00 pm
Meeting Room A – Old Town Hall, Blackburn

AGENDA

PART 1 - ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PUBLIC 

1.  Welcome and Apologies

2.  Declarations of interest in items on this Agenda
A form is attached for completion by Members declaring an 
interest in items on the agenda. 

Declarations of Interest 3

3.  Minutes of the meeting held on the 10th June 2019
To agree as a correct record the minutes of the People 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting held on the 10th 
June 2019.

People minutes - 10th June 2019 4 - 6

4.  Feedback from the Youth Forum and update on the 
integration event
The Committee to receive an update from the Youth Forum 
on their work and to receive a short video on the recent 
integration event that the Youth Forum held at Restricted 
Rocks in Witton Park on Saturday 22nd June 2019.

The Committee will also be informed of the forums work on 
the transformation of CAMHS service. 

5.  Renal Dialysis Services in Lancashire and South 
Cumbria - Renal Haemodialysis Review attached.

 The Committee to receive and note the briefing on 
Renal Dialysis Services in Lancashire and South 
Cumbria.

 The Committee is asked for approval to proceed with 
the renal haemodialysis reconfiguration and retender 
as outlined in the briefing.

Public Document Pack



 The Committee is asked to agree to receive a further 
briefing following the conclusion of the retender 
process. 

Renal Haemodialysis review 7 - 12

6.  Update on SEND report
The Committee to receive a presentation on the recent 
SEND inspection.

7.  Corporate Objectives
For the Committee to receive an overview of performance 
towards the Corporate aims and objectives.

PART 2 - THE PRESS AND THE PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED 
DURING CONSIDERATION OF THE FOLLOWING ITEM
There are no Part 2 items.

Date Published: 30th August 2019 
Denise Park, Chief Executive



D:\blackburn\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\1\3\AI00002319\$wgzfydjw.doc

        
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN 

ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA

Members attending a Council, Committee, Board or other 
meeting with a personal interest in a matter on the Agenda must 
disclose the existence and nature of the interest and, if it is a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an Other Interest under 
paragraph 16.1 of the Code of Conduct, should leave the 
meeting during discussion and voting on the item.

Members declaring an interest(s) should complete this form and 
hand it to the Democratic Services Officer at the 
commencement of the meeting and declare such an interest at 
the appropriate point on the agenda.

MEETING:     PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:            9th September 2019

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 

DESCRIPTION (BRIEF):

NATURE OF INTEREST:

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY/OTHER (delete as appropriate)

SIGNED : 

PRINT NAME: 

(Paragraphs 8 to 17 of the Code of Conduct for Members of the Council refer)

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



People Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Monday, 10th June, 2019

PEOPLE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Monday, 10 June 2019

PRESENT – Councillors Liddle (Chair), Afzal, P Akhtar, Salton, Julie Slater, 
Jacqueline Slater, D Smith and Whittle.  

OFFICERS – 
Cllr Bateson - Executive Member for Children’s, Young People & Education 
Cllr Desai - Executive Member for Adult Services & Prevention
Cllr Talbot - Executive Member of Public Health & Wellbeing
Cllr B Taylor - Assistant Exec Member for Public Health & Wellbeing
Jayne Ivory - Director of Children's Services
Sayyed Osman - Director of Adults and Prevention
Dominic Harrison – Director of Public Health & Well-being
Shirley Goodhew – Consultant in Public Health
Paul Lee - Head of Safeguarding, Community Protection & Specialist 
Services
Elizabeth Clarkson -Young People’s Services
Paul Conlon - Governance & Democratic Technical Lead 
Firoza Hafeji - Governance Officer

IN ATTENDANCE – Kelcey Firth – Bwd Youth Forum Member

RESOLUTIONS

1  Welcome and Apologies

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors I Hussain and 
Oates. 

The Chair informed the Committee that Kelcey Firth, BwD Youth Forum 
member, had attended the meeting to update Members on BwD Youth Forum.

Kelcey explained that the youth forum was planning their Integration event as 
part of The Great Get Together event in memory of Jo Cox.  The event was 
named “Eat, Rave, Repeat” and was scheduled to take place at Restricted 
Rocks on Saturday 22nd June 2019.  

The Committee heard that the event would host a silent disco which would 
promote different music cultures, a selection of different foods from across the 
world, a large inflatable obstacle course, arts and crafts and face painting.  
Integration team had allocated a budget for the event and 150 tickets had 
been purchased to distribute to families across BwD, who would not normally 
attend an event like this.  

Members were informed that YPS Participation and Youth Voice had 
successfully renewed their certificate for another year; in addition the YPS 
SEND Inclusion had also successfully achieved renewal.

Kelcey stated that following the 2017 Takeover Challenge on mental health, 
young people fed back that they wanted an online mental health website that 
they were able to access 365 days a year.  In April 2019, following 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



People Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Monday, 10th June, 2019

consultation with Public Health, Kooth had now been commissioned.  The 
statistics were looking good for the first month and assemblies and meetings 
were taking place to promote the resource. 

2  Declarations of Interest in items on this Agenda

There were no declarations of interest received. 

3  Minutes of the meeting held on the 4th March 2019

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the last meeting held on the 4th March 2019 
were approved as a correct record and were duly signed by the Chair.  

4  The Corporate Plan and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Chair invited Dominic Harrison, Director of Public Health & Well-being and 
Shirley Goodhew, Consultant in Public Health to update the Committee on 
Mental Health which was a legacy from the previous municipal year.  It was 
noted that the Mental Health system was currently being redesigned using a 
new scheme from Cumbria to address the issues identified.  

Members heard that Shirley was working in partnership with CCG to look at 
mental health services and identify ways to bridge the gaps.  

The Committee were updated on the progress made which identified that a 
Mental Health Practitioner was being appointed for each of the seven School 
Improvement Groups.  Also a mother and baby unit had recently opened in 
Chorley to support patients with mental health.  

Update from Executive Members 
The Chair invited Executive Members, Cllr Damion Talbot, Cllr Maureen 
Bateson and Cllr Mustafa Desai alongside relevant Directors to update the 
Committee on their portfolio priorities for 2019/20.  Members noted the 
challenges each portfolio faced.

Corporate Plan 2019 - 2023
The Committee received a presentation by Paul Conlon, Governance & 
Democratic Technical Lead, on the new Corporate Plan 2019 – 2023 which 
covered Councils key objectives.  It was noted that Policy Council in 
December 2018 agreed that a new Corporate Plan 2019-2023 be developed, 
underpinned by a refreshed performance framework.  

Members heard that four strategic themes had been identified and 
underpinned by eight corporate priorities set out below:

People - A good quality of life for all of our residents
P1. Supporting young people and raising aspirations
P2. Safeguarding and supporting the most vulnerable people
P3. Reducing health inequalities and improving health outcomes

Place - Community pride in a vibrant place to live and visit
P4. Connected Communities
P5. Safe and clean environment

Page 5



People Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Monday, 10th June, 2019

Economy – A strong and inclusive economy with continued growth
P6. Strong, growing economy to enable social mobility
P7. Supporting our town centres and businesses

Council - Delivered by a strong and resilient council 
P8. Transparent and effective organisation

Four cross-cutting themes underpin the Plan – digital; partnership working; 
fairness for all; and promoting and celebrating the Borough.  
The new Corporate Plan sets out the policy priorities for the Council from 
2019-2023 and replaces the existing six corporate priorities which were 
developed in 2012.  

RESOLVED -  That the Executive Members be invited to an informal meeting 
to discuss their portfolio priorities in detail which would then be shared at the 
next People Overview & Scrutiny Committee scheduled for 9th September 
2019. 

Signed: ………………………………………………….

Date: …………………………………………………….
Chair of the meeting 

at which the minutes were confirmed

Page 6



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is reconfiguring and 
retendering the renal haemodialysis service, which is provided to more than 600 
patients throughout Lancashire and South Cumbria at seven locations (as well as at 
home for approximately 100 patients). 
 
This change is necessary to improve the availability and quality of care closer to 
patients’ homes. Many patients travel longer than the national standard of 30 
minutes to their nearest renal unit; some facilities are not fit for purpose or are 
situated in an inconvenient location; there are recruitment challenges at more than 
one unit which restricts opening hours; and the service is not financially sustainable. 
 
Feedback from patients and patient representative groups has informed the 
development of a new service specification.  Bidders will be required to submit 
proposals that recommend how they will meet the new service specification.  
Patients will be fully involved in this retender process and their feedback will be a 
significant factor in the decision-making process. 
 
Whilst the service specification does not prescribe the locations of the renal units, to 
meet the requirements of the specification the following changes are likely to how the 
service is configured :  
 

 In South Cumbria unit a new unit further West, in addition to the existing Kendal 
unit, is needed to improve travel times for Barrow patients. 

 The Kendal unit location and facilities may be relocated to reduce patient journey 
times. 

 The Blackpool unit currently situated at Clifton Hospital may be relocated to 
another site that is easier for Blackpool patients to reach and to provide more 
appropriate facilities for modern renal patient care. 

 The Accrington and Burnley units may be replaced by a new suitably located 
purpose built unit in East Lancashire. 

 The Blackburn service currently delivered in a porta cabin may be replaced by a 
new purpose built unit at Royal Blackburn Hospital site or close by. 

 
Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive and note this briefing, give approval 
for the retender process to proceed on the basis outlined, and agree to receive a 
further briefing when the retender process concludes later this year. 
 

 
  

Renal haemodialysis review 31 July 2019 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is the tertiary provider of renal 
haemodialysis for all patients in Lancashire and South Cumbria. 
 
Renal haemodialysis is life preserving treatment for patients whose kidneys are not 
functioning well enough to remove waste and fluid from their blood.  Such patients 
require regular renal haemodialysis, usually three times a week, for four hours at a 
time.  In some cases kidney failure is a temporary problem, but if kidney failure is 
established and irreversible then patients are offered a kidney transplant where 
clinically appropriate.  Whilst such patients wait for approximately three years for a 
kidney transplant they require ongoing dialysis. However the largest group of 
patients are those considered unlikely to benefit from, or survive, kidney transplant 
surgery. These patients require dialysis for the rest of their life and their experiences 
of care impact hugely on their physical and mental wellbeing.  
 
Renal haemodialysis can be provided in hospital, in a separate nurse-led renal 
facility, or at home. 
 

 

2. The current position in Lancashire and South Cumbria 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
More than 600 patients currently receive haemodialysis or peritoneal dialysis in 
Lancashire and South Cumbria, either at home, or in a renal unit at one of seven 
locations : 

 Royal Preston Hospital 

 Chorley & South Ribble Hospital 

 Westmoreland District General Hospital 

 Royal Blackburn Hospital 

 Accrington Hospital 

 Burney Hospital 

 Clifton Hospital, Blackpool 
 
Due to the way the service was originally set up, there are a number of issues with 
how it is delivered, including : 

 The national standard for travel time to dialysis is 30 minutes.  Some patients 
are currently travelling considerably longer than this every dialysis trip.   

 Some services are provided in locations that are either inconvenient, or are 
not fit for purpose. 

 There are problems recruiting staff to some services which limits capacity to 
care for local patients. 

 The way that services are currently provided is not financially viable. 

Our vision for haemodialysis is to deliver high quality services for 
patients either at home, or within 30 minutes of home, in an appropriate 
setting that provides a positive experience. 
 

Page 8



3 
 

 
These issues mean that we are not able to achieve our vision and provide all 
patients with a good experience, and our ability to deliver a sustainable service is 
compromised due to excessive and rising costs.   
 
The issues relating to each geographical area are outlined in further detail below.   
 

2.1 South Cumbria 
75% of patients who dialyse at the Kendal facility experience  a longer journey time 
than 30 minutes, and therefore this service is not meeting the national standard.  The 
service is delivered by Lancashire Teaching Hospitals staff in rented accommodation 
at Westmorland General Hospital. 
 

2.2  Blackpool and Fylde 
The location of the dialysis facility for patients in the Blackpool and Fylde area is at 
Clifton Hospital, which is on the coast and so challenging for some patients to 
access easily in less than 30 minutes.  This location too presents ongoing staff 
recruitment challenges and as a result dialysis is available for fewer hours and at 
less convenient times for patients in this area compared with others.  
The service at Clifton is provided by Fresenius, a specialist renal agency, overseen 
by Lancashire Teaching Hospitals renal consultants. 
 

2.3 East Lancashire 
In East Lancashire dialysis services are currently provided in Accrington, Burnley 
and Blackburn.  The unit at Accrington is structurally inadequate, unfit for purpose, 
and does not provide a good patient experience.   The rent for the Burnley facility is 
prohibitively high and is a significant cost pressure to the sustainability of the service 
in this area.  The service at Blackburn is provided from a temporary portakabin which 
is an unsatisfactory environment in which to deliver care.   
The service at Accrington and Burnley is provided by Diaverum, and by Fresenius at 
Blackburn, both specialist renal agencies overseen by Lancashire Teaching 
Hospitals consultants. 
 

2.4 Central Lancashire 
In central Lancashire haemodialysis is provided from the main unit at Royal Preston 
Hospital, and a satellite unit at Chorley & South Ribble Hospital.   
The service in central Lancashire is provided by Lancashire Teaching Hospitals staff. 
 
 

3. Proposal 
 
In recent years Lancashire Teaching Hospitals has been undertaking a service 
review, and engaging with patients, families, patient representative groups and staff 
to develop understanding of what currently works, and what requires improvement to 
achieve the service vision.   
 
Lancashire Teaching Hospitals has recently received permission from NHS England, 
the commissioner of renal services, to reconfigure and retender renal haemodialysis 
in Lancashire and South Cumbria, in order to : 

Page 9



4 
 

 Improve patient access 

 Improve patient experience 

 Ensure the service is financially sustainable for the future 
 
Patient and patient representative group feedback has informed the development of 
a service specification, which will be subject to a competitive tendering process in 
the autumn. 
 
The tender process will invite bidders to submit proposals for how the service could 
be configured, to meet the service specification, and achieve the service vision.   
 
Because the bidders will not submit proposals until later this year it is not possible at 
this stage to indicate exactly how the service may change.  However in order to meet 
the service specification and design a service that delivers the vision, a number of 
changes are likely to proposed, detailed below. 
 

3.1 South Cumbria 
75% of patients in the South Cumbria area currently travel for longer than 30 minutes 
to reach the Kendal unit, so this location is not optimum for the majority of service 
users.  It is therefore likely that it will be proposed that a new unit is provided further 
West, to enable Barrow patients to access the service within 30 minutes. The Kendal 
unit may require redesign to offer care that is currently only available in Chorley 
(Home Dialysis training) and depending on options may relocate a short distance to 
help achieve our vision for dialysis care.  
 

3.2 Blackpool and the Fylde 
Feedback from staff and patients indicates that the design of this unit currently 
provides daily challenges with limited isolation space, patient visibility and lack of 
equipment storage. As a result patients with infection or mobility problems are often 
unable to dialyse close to home. Furthermore patient feedback indicates that the 
renal unit currently situated at Clifton Hospital is inconvenient.  It is likely that it will 
be proposed that this unit is reprovided in another location within the Blackpool area 
that is more accessible for more local patients with better facilities.  Evidence 
indicates that relocating the unit to a more convenient location will also aid staff 
recruitment, thus enabling the service to operate opening hours in line with other 
units, so ensuring equity of access across the region. 
 

3.3 East Lancashire 
Patient and staff representative groups have expressed a preference to replace both 
units at Accrington and Burnley with one more suitably located, fit for purpose unit for 
those communities. Across these units there are also problems with limited isolation 
space and lack of equipment storage. As a result patients with infection or mobility 
problems are often unable to dialyse close to home. 
In addition to the unit for Accrington and Burnley patients, there is a plan to build a 
new unit at Royal Blackburn Hospital to replace the service currently provided from a 
porta cabin. 
  

3.4 Central Lancashire 

Page 10



5 
 

Because the renal service at the main hub at Royal Preston Hospital and the satellite 
unit at Chorley and South Ribble Hospital are staffed by Lancashire Teaching 
Hospitals, provided in Lancashire Teaching Hospitals premises, and there are 
potential implications depending on the outcome of the Our Health, Our Care 
programme, these services are out of scope of the current reconfiguration and 
retender programme. However we would anticipate an improvement in the care 
afforded to Preston unit patients if this reconfiguration and service improvement 
progresses. Many patients that currently cannot dialyse closer to home around the 
region for a variety of reasons outlined above will be able to do so; thus relieving 
capacity pressures on the Preston unit where there is currently a waiting list to start 
dialysis. 
 
 

4. Next steps 
 
Prospective bidders will be required to respond to tender invitations from by October 
2019. 
 
Patients and patient representative groups will be involved in reviewing the bids, to 
assess how the proposals will meet their needs.  Patient and patient representative 
group feedback will be a key consideration in the decision-making process. 
 
The successful bidder will be notified by the end of 2019. 
 
Services will be reconfigured from 2020. 
 

Request of Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
4.1 Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to receive and note this briefing. 
 
4.2 Health Scrutiny Committee is asked for approval to proceed with the renal 

haemodialysis reconfiguration and retender as is outlined in this briefing. 
 
4.3 Health Scrutiny Committee is asked to agree to receive a further briefing 

following the conclusion of the retender process. 
 

 

If you have any queries or would like further information please contact  

Dr Mark Brady, Clinical Director of Renal Medicine and Consultant Nephrologist 
mark.brady@lthtr.nhs.uk 01772 524629 

Jennifer Gilpin, Transformation Manager Jennifer.gilpin@lthtr.nhs.uk 01772 522868  

 

 

 

Page 11

mailto:mark.brady@lthtr.nhs.uk
mailto:Jennifer.gilpin@lthtr.nhs.uk


6 
 

 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of interest in items on this Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 10th June 2019
	5 Renal Dialysis Services in Lancashire and South Cumbria - Renal Haemodialysis Review attached.

